
CITY OF ALBION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 

 
City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 

 
 

  AGENDA  
 

COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, March 18, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 
 

PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES DURING MEETING 
 

I.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 

 

III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV. ROLL CALL 

 

V. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA (Includes any proposed additions, deletions or other 

changes to the agenda) 

 

VI. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 

 

  A. Proclamation Recognizing Albion College 184th Birthday 

     B.  Albion Economic Development Corporation Update 

C.  Greater Albion Chamber of Commerce & Visitors Bureau Update 

D.  2019 Economic Community Development Update from Mayor  

      Atchison 

               

VII. PUBLIC HEARING-None 

          

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their  

  comments to agenda items only and to no more than three (3) minutes. Proper  

  decorum is required.) 

 

IX. CLOSED SESSION-The City Manager requests an Executive Session 

under the Open Meetings Act (Section 15.268 (a), P.A.  267 of 1976, 

as amended) to consider the dismissal, suspension or disciplining of, 

or to hear complaints or charges brought against, or to consider a 

periodic personnel evaluation of a public officer, employee, staff 

member of individual agent, if the named person requests a closed 

hearing  

 

X. CONSENT CALENDAR (VV) (Items on Consent Calendar are voted on  

             as one unit) 

 

  A. Approval Special Session Minutes, March 1, 2019 

 B.  Approval Regular Session Minutes, March 4, 2019 

COUNCIL-MANAGER 

GOVERNMENT 

 

Council members and 

other officials normally in 

attendance. 

 

 

David Atchison 

Mayor 

 

Vicky Clark 

Council Member 

1st Precinct 

 

Lenn Reid 

Council Member 

2nd Precinct 

 

Sonya Brown 

Mayor Pro-Tem 

Council Member 

3rd Precinct 

 

Marcola Lawler 
Council Member 

4th Precinct 

 

Jeanette Spicer 

Council Member  

5th Precinct   

 

Shane Williamson 

Council Member 

6th Precinct 

 

Scott Kipp 

Interim City Manager

  

 

 The Harkness Law Firm 

Atty Cullen Harkness  

 

Jill Domingo 

City Clerk 

 

 
NOTICE FOR PERSONS WITH 

HEARING IMPAIR-MENTS 

WHO REQUIRE THE USE OF A 

PORTABLE LISTENING DEVICE   

 

Please contact the City 

Clerk’s office at 

517.629.5535 and a listening 

device will be provided 

upon notification.  If you 

require a signer, please 

notify City Hall at least five 

(5) days prior to the posted 

meeting time. 



CITY OF ALBION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Meetings:  First and Third Mondays – 7:00 p.m. 

 
City Council Chambers ♦ Second Floor ♦ 112 West Cass Street ♦ Albion, MI  49224 

 

C.  Assembly Permit for Grace Temple Church for Victory Park on  

        May 18th and 19th, 2019 

   

XI.  ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 

 

A. Discussion/Action City Manager Contract 

 

B. Discussion/Action Interim City Manager 

 

C. Discussion/Action GovHR 

 

D. Discussion/Approval 1st Reading Ordinance # 2019-03, An 

Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 58-166, Possession and Use of 

Marijuana 

 

E. Discussion/Precinct Economic Initiatives 

 

F. Request Approval of Designating Kent Phillips as Street 

Administrator 

 

G. Request Approval Resolution # 2019-09, To Approve Restrictive 

Covenant for 507 N. Albion St. 

 

H. Request Approval Resolution # 2019-10, To Approve Restrictive 

Covenant for 1203 E. North St. 

 

I. Discussion Sewer Rate Increases 

 

J. Discussion/Rental Certification 

 

XII.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

XIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit    

             their comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum   

  is required). 

 

XIV.  CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

XV.  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 

XVI.  MOTION TO EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCIL MEMBER (S) 

 

XVII. ROLL CALL 

 

XVIII. ADJOURN 





ALBION ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 2019
MARCH 7, 2019 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 

APPROVED BY EDC BOARD FALL 2017

ANNUAL CERTIFICATION OF PLAN – PENDING APRIL 2019

SUPPORT OF PLAN BY CITY OF ALBION COUNCIL – PENDING 

Goal 1: Stabilize the downtown, enhance its historic character, and support its economic growth. 

Goal 2: Stabilize the City’s major corridors and support their economic growth

Goal 3: Build the human and capital capacity of key economic development agencies with Albion

Goal 4: Retain and attract high-leverage jobs to Albion 

Goal 5: Strengthen housing market and stock

Goal 6: Create a unified brand for Albion to drive tourism, business growth, and investment

Goal 7: Make strategic choices to turn Albion into a destination for current and future residents and tourists.  

Community Champions –

City, EDC, Chamber, DDA, ARC, and other community partners 



COMMUNITY CRITICAL NEED THEMES

Through Public Input: 

• Diversified Housing Stock 

• Grocery Options 

• Jobs 

• Healthcare Options 

• Brownfield Elimination 

• Corridor Improvement – Austin, Eaton 

Which gets priority? What’s most important?  What about BLANK?  



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 

APPROVED BY EDC BOARD FALL 2017

ANNUAL CERTIFICATION OF PLAN – PENDING APRIL 2019

SUPPORT OF PLAN BY CITY OF ALBION COUNCIL – PENDING 

Goal 1: Stabilize the downtown, enhance its historic character, and support its economic growth. 

Goal 2: Stabilize the City’s major CORRIDORS and support their economic growth

Goal 3: Build the human and capital capacity of key economic development agencies with Albion

Goal 4: Retain and attract high-leverage JOBS to Albion 

Goal 5: Strengthen HOUSING market and stock

Goal 6: Create a unified brand for Albion to drive tourism, business growth, and investment

Goal 7: Make strategic choices to turn Albion into a destination for current and future residents and tourists.  

BROWNFIELD – Goal 3 & 4

Health/Wellness (Grocery) – Dependent upon NEED (Demographics) 



RURAL GROCERY 

TRENDS & 

CHALLENGES 

 Middle Class – shrinking and dividing 

 Amazon / Walmart – Superstores, specializing in delivery 

 Movement to:

 Pick-up (warehouse, dark stores, retail giants) 

 Destination Shopping – wine bar, culinary classes, its an experience 

 Urban – High Density Housing with 1st floor Target, Trader Joes, Whole Foods

 Rise of Dollar General – increases inequality, targeted at the Rural, low-income 

shopper



DEMOGRAPHICS & TECHNOLOGY DEMANDS 

ALDI  Choose Locations for New Stores

 Population Density

 Proximity to Competition

 Cost of the Property

 Traffic Patterns 

KROGER  Movement Away from new 

Bricks & Mortar 

 Engagement with the 

Customer:

 Clicklist

 Instacart 

 Walgreens – Grocery pick-up

We take a variety of factors into consideration, including availability and cost of real estate, population
density, education, demographics, and the community’s interest in natural and organic foods. No one factor 

is most important.” - Whole Foods



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIC PLAN 

Goal 1: Stabilize the downtown, enhance its historic character, and support its economic growth. 

Promote Mixed Use, Create Density,  ARC’s Advancing Albion Plan 

Goal 2: Stabilize the City’s major corridors and support their economic growth

Goal 3: Build the human and capital capacity of key economic development agencies with Albion

Goal 4: Retain and attract high-leverage jobs to Albion 

Foster Entrepreneurship, Support Re-use of Brownfield Sites 

Goal 5: Strengthen housing market and stock

Spur Development for In-Fill and Underutilized Sites (Increase Density) 

Goal 6: Create a unified brand for Albion to drive tourism, business growth, and investment

Goal 7: Make strategic choices to turn Albion into a destination for current and future residents and tourists. 

Creation of an Environment to Attract Destination Shopping  

Lost population, density, tax base, traffic, housing options – did not happen overnight and 
won’t be fixed overnight.   It will take time, but we are moving forward. 



2018 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN REVIEW

Retention:  $8.6 Million Investment & 11 Jobs Retained

Property Tax Abatement 12 years 

RETENTION

Acquisition of 1104 Industrial Avenue (Albion Business Incubator)

Transition from Incubator Tenant to Graduated Enterprise 



2018 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN REVIEW

City of Albion’s Ordinance for Medical Marijuana 

• Greenwell BioMedicinals, LLC (Trident) – AIP Lot 20 Acquired

• Comco, LLC – AIP Lot 27 and 28 Acquired 

• Greenhouse Farms LLC – Acquired 930 Elliott (formerly Bay Corrugated) 

ATTRACTION – SUCCESSFUL  

• Project Tiger:  Tier I Automotive, assembly operation (197 jobs / $30 million investment) 

• Project Blue:  Automotive (146 jobs / $14 million investment) – CLOSED / Site Acquired by other

• 5 Solar Farm Prospects

• 9 Medical Marijuana Prospects 

OPPORTUNITIES    



WORKFORCE –PREP EVENTS & JOB FAIR

Job Fair Events 

- 1 Hosted with Michigan Works!

- 1 Partnered with Clemens Group

Employers Participated

Interviews (based on survey responses)

Resulting in 13 Job Offers 

Job Seekers Participated 



WORKFORCE 

• Jobs Monday – Facebook 

• MiTalent.org – Resume Matching 

• Barrier Navigation & Job Prep Events 

• Entrepreneurial Services 

• Business Counseling – Partnership 

with SBDC 

• Starting a Business Workshops 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

• Albion Malleable Brewing Company
25 Jobs / $1.1 million investment

RLF Loan – Working Capital 

• 1000 W. Erie – Changes Rehab 
Substance use Detox and Residential Treatment 

Site Assistance 

• Housing Developments 
• Partnered with CCLBA on small scale development workshop

• Pitched and Courted Several Housing Developers 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT – NEW DOWNTOWN BUSINESSES 

• Brick Street Marketing 

• Pure Albion 

• The Office 

• Peabody Building – residential lofts 

• Albion Malleable Brewing Company 

• Courtyard by Marriott 

• Teragraphics

• Turtle Dove  



Anchor Food Hub Tenants:
• Foundry Bakehouse & Deli 

• Rosie’s Flavors 

• Albion Malleable

Pop-Up Retails:
• Cooper’s Dish

• Rosie’s Flavor

• Wakey Bakey

• Other Food Hub Opportunities: 
• Albion College Classes

• Albion Library Classes 

• Educational Classes with Fork’s 

Senior Center & Albion 

Healthcare Alliance

• Partnership with AmeriCorps 

VISTA  



ALBION FOOD HUB & FARMERS MARKET 

Albion Farmers Market Vendors:
• Green Eggs and Jam
• Dale Hunt’s Farm
• Eicher’s Family Bakery
• Holz Mechaniker USA
• Nottawa Crossing Farms
• Woven Acres
• Envirogrow Farms LLC
• Monk Farms
• Jolly Green Junction
• Heritage Enterprises 
• K’s Acres 

• Rosie’s Flavor
• NUO
• Novicain Customs
• Maverick Munchies
• Casey Saldana
• Gilg Farms
• Nottawa Crossing Farms
• Lavender Dreams Farm
• Theresa Charles Breads
• Umbel Nursery and Farmstead



2019 LOOKING FORWARD 

WORKFORCE  Workforce Action Team – Filling Needs of the Community & Prospects 

 Job Fair 

BUSINESS 

DEVELOPMENT

 Attraction of Industry & Jobs 

 Albion Annual Retention Visits  

COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT

 Albion Redevelopment Corporation – Superior Street Lofts Project 

 Albion Brownfield Redevelopment Authority – Policies, Targeted Redevelopment 

Area Plan  

 Housing Developments, Neighborhood Enterprise Zones,  Diversify Housing 

Stock

 Corridor Improvement Support 



2019 LOOKING FORWARD CONTINUED

FUNDING 
 Albion’s Revolving Loan Fund – Build Awareness, Increase Use 

 Identify Funding Sources to Build Capacity and Grow Economic Efforts 

ALBION FOOD 

HUB & FARMERS 

MARKET

 Steering Committee –Rebranding and Strategic Initiatives 

 Redesign of Hub

 Helping Hand Hub Box – Fresh Food Initiative 

 Diversify Use of the Hub 



ALBION ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 2019
MARCH 7, 2019 



Destination: 
Albion

Driving Tourism to the Albion Area 
Through Outdoor Recreation



Albion’s Assets

- Kalamazoo River

- 5 Trails

- Equestrian Center

- 17 Parks/90 acres



Why Outdoor Recreation?

- 63% of Michigan residents participate in 

outdoor recreation each year.

- Promotes a healthy lifestyle. 

- Contributes to a higher quality of life.

- Biggest draw for millennial generation 

(currently largest percentage of population) 

to visit an area.



Economic Impact



Economic Impact: National vs. Michigan

National

- $887 Billion in consumer 

spending annually.

- 7.6 Million American Jobs.

- $65.3 Billion in Federal Tax 

Revenue.

- $59.2 Billion in State and Local 

Tax Revenue.

Michigan

- $26.6 Billion in consumer 

spending annually.

- 232,000 direct jobs.

- $7.5 Billion in wages and salaries.

- $2.1 Billion in State and Local Tax 

Revenue.



Comparable Trails and Their Impact

Great Allegheny Passage (Pittsburgh to Cumberland, MD)

- 150 Miles of Trail

- Estimated Overall Direct Economic Impact: $50 Million

- Average Day User Spends: $18 Per Day

- Average Overnight Guest Spends: $124 Per Night



Comparable Trails and Their Impact

Great Allegheny Passage (Pittsburgh to Cumberland, MD)

- 137 New Trail-Related Businesses Opened from 2007-2015.

- 72 Business Closed Resulting in a Net Gain of 65 New Businesses.

- 270+ New Jobs Created.

- Estimated Sales Related to Trail Traffic:
- 2008: 25%, 2012: 30%, 2013: 34%, 2014: 40%



Comparable Trails and Their Impact

Erie to Pittsburgh Trail 

- 62 Mile Trail

- Overall Economic Impact: $7.48 Million

- Average Day User Spends: $21 Per Day

- Average Overnight Guest Spends: $80 Per Night



Comparable Trails and Their Impact

Erie to Pittsburgh Trail 

- 61% of Businesses Planned to Expand in the Next Year.

- 70% of Those Businesses said it was Trail Related.

- Estimated Sales Related to Trail Traffic:
- 2013: 10%, 2014: 19%



Huron River Economic Impact

Estimated Total Direct Spending by Visitors to the Huron River:

- Meals: $9,715,529

- Shopping: $2,018,835

- Transportation: $2,110,006

- Gear Rental: $7,838,058

- Other: $816,908

- TOTAL: $22,499,336



We’ve Left Money on the Table for Too Long

Even if Albion only saw 5% of what is spent annually on the Huron River, that 

would be an extra $1,125,000 per year.

One-time investments into river and trail infrastructure, along with educating local 

business on what being “trail friendly” means, would give an economic jolt to 

Albion at a time when businesses are struggling. 



Contact the Chamber

Eric Worley
President/CEO
Greater Albion Chamber of Commerce & Visitors Bureau
310 S. Superior St., PO Box 238
Albion, MI 49224
(517) 629-5533
eric@greateralbionchamber.org



Community Economic 
Development
2019 Forecast

Our future is now!

DAVE ATCHISON

MAYOR

7 March 2019



What is Community Economic Development?

A partnership between an engaged community 
working with city government, local area 
stakeholders and private sector interests to 
build a more vibrant community.



Building a vibrant community

It’s impossible to work on the whole puzzle at 
once, you need to focus on parts but keep the 
whole puzzle in mind. 



Albion is Putting the Pieces together
Downtown renovation

Completion of Peabody Building  Project

Expanding Healthcare Services
• Oaklawn Clinic @ Munger Place
• Calhoun County Health Department 

Infrastructure
Superior Street

Water Tower

Irwin Avenue

North Street

Water & Sewage System

Housing
Peabody Lofts – 4 apartments

Superior Street Apartments - > 50 planned



Moving Albion Forward in 2019

• Removing obstacles to Development in Albion
• Redevelopment Ready City (RRC) Certification
• County-wide capacity gap for permit inspections
• County Land Bank innovations and prioritization 

improvements
• Zoning Ordinance Update

• Emphasizing Gateway Economic Development
• Corridor Improvement Authority (CIA)
• Neighborhood Improvement Authority (NIA)
• Residential Improvement Authority



Moving Albion Forward in 2019

• Expanding Albion’s Appeal 
• Enhancing Holland Park - Pavilion

• Calhoun County Transportation Planning

• Albion River Trail Expansion

• Encouraging new dining & entertainment options 

• 2019 Blue Ribbon Panels - Task Forces
• Child Care Expansion Task Force 

• Youth Employment Task Force

• Youth Leadership Council



Restoring Public Trust 

INTEGRITY

TRANSPARENCY ACCOUNTABILITY

COMMUNICATION



Questions?





 

 

Page 1 of 3                                                                             Special Council minutes/3-1-2019 

 

  

 

City of Albion 
Special Council Session Minutes  

March 1, 2019 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Atchison called the special meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

II.  MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 
 
III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV.  ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Vicky Clark (1), Lenn Reid (2), Sonya Brown (3), Marcola Lawler (4), 
Jeanette Spicer (5), Shane Williamson (6) and Mayor Atchison.   
 
ABSENT: All members were present 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
 
Scott Kipp, Acting City Manager/Public Safety Chief; Cullen Harkness, City 
Attorney; Jill Domingo, City Clerk; Tom Mead, Finance Director and John Tracy, 
Director Planning, Building & Code Enforcement.  
 

V.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA (Includes any proposed additions, deletions or other 

changes to the agenda) 
 

VI.   PRESENTATIONS-None 
   
VII.  PUBLIC HEARINGS-None 
   
VIII. PUBLIC Comments (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 

comments to agenda items and to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper 
decorum is required.) 
 
Comments were received from LaVada Weeks, 917 Luther Dr 
**Council Member Brown called Point of Order stating comments were not 
directed to agenda item. 
**Mayor Atchison asked Ms. Weeks to continue 
**Council Member Brown called Point of Order and asked for City Attorney 
Harkness for a legal opinion pertaining to public comments on agenda items 
only. 
**City Attorney Harkness stated that an argument could be made either way 
however, the Open Meetings Act tends to favor in ability for the public to make 
comments. 



 

 

Page 2 of 3                                                                             Special Council minutes/3-1-2019 

 

  

 

Additional comments were received from Garrett Brown, 1016 S. Superior St.; 
Mayor Atchison and Council Member Williamson. 
**Council Member Spicer called Point of Order. 
Public comments continued with comments received from Dan Seely, 310 Burr 
Oak St and Karen Yankie, 104 Irwin Avenue. 
 

IX. CLOSED SESSION-The City Attorney requests a Closed Session under the 
Open Meetings Act (Section 15.268 (h), P.A. 267 of 1976, as amended) to 
consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure by state or federal law. 

 
 Reid moved, Williamson supported, CARRIED, to adjourn to Closed Session. (7-

0, vv) 
 

Mayor Atchison adjourned to Closed Session at 7:15 p.m. 
 
Mayor Atchison re-convened the Special Session at 8:06 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Vicky Clark (1), Lenn Reid (2), Sonya Brown (3), Marcola Lawler (4), 
Jeanette Spicer (5), Shane Williamson (6) and Mayor Atchison.   
 
ABSENT: All members were present 
 

X.  CONSENT CALENDAR (vv) (Items on Consent Calendar are voted on as one 
unit)-None 
 

XI.  ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 
 

A. Discussion/Approval Personnel Matter 
 

Council Member Brown read a statement and asked for a motion to make City 
Clerk Domingo the Acting City Manager effective immediately. 
 
Comments were received from Council Members Brown, Williamson, Spicer 
and Clark; Mayor Atchison; City Attorney Harkness and Labor Attorney 
Chelsea Ditz. 
 
Mayor Atchison Called the Question. 
 
Brown moved, Lawler supported, FAILED, To Make City Clerk Domingo 
Acting City Manager Effective Immediately. (3-4, rcv) (Clark, Reid, Williamson 
and Mayor Atchison dissenting). 

 
XII.  Future Agenda Items-None 



 

 

Page 3 of 3                                                                             Special Council minutes/3-1-2019 

 

  

 

 
XIII.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 

comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required). 
 
Comments were received from Fred Alexander, 208 Watson St. and Elizabeth 
Craig, 802 Austin Avenue. 
 

XIV. CITY MANAGER REPORT-None  
 
XV. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER’S COMMENTS 
 

Comments were received from Council Members Brown and Williamson and 
Mayor Atchison. 
 

XVI.  Motion to Excuse Absent Council Member (s) 
 

No action was necessary as all members were present. 
 

XVII.  ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Vicky Clark (1), Lenn Reid (2), Sonya Brown (3), Marcola Lawler 
(4), Jeanette Spicer (5), Shane Williamson (6) and Mayor Atchison.   

 
ABSENT: All members were present. 

 
XVIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Reid moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to adjourn the special session. (7-0, 
vv) 
 

Mayor Atchison adjourned the Special Session at 8:30 p.m. 
 
 
__________________    _________________________ 

Date      Jill Domingo   
        City Clerk 

 
 



 

 

Page 1 of 10                                                                             Council minutes/3-4-2019 

 

  

 

City of Albion 
Council Session Minutes  

March 4, 2019 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Atchison called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

II.  MOMENT OF SILENCE TO BE OBSERVED 
 
III.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV.  ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Vicky Clark (1), Lenn Reid (2); Marcola Lawler (4); Jeanette Spicer 
(5); Shane Williamson (6) and Mayor Atchison.   
 
ABSENT: Council Member Sonya Brown (3)  
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
 
Scott Kipp, Acting City Manager/Chief Public Safety; Cullen Harkness, City 
Attorney; Tom Mead, Finance Director; Jill Domingo, City Clerk; and John Tracy, 
Director Planning, Building & Code Enforcement. 
 

V.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA (Includes any proposed additions, deletions or other 
changes to the agenda) 

 

Mayor Atchison asked to remove the following items: 
 Item (A) from Presentations-Oath of Office for Public Safety Officer Bryan 

Gandy as he was unable to attend the meeting  
 Item (G) from Items for Individual Discussion-Discussion-City Council 

Code of Ethics as Council Member Brown asked for this agenda item and 
was absent. 

 
Comments were received from Council Member Reid and City Attorney 
Harkness. 

 
Reid moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Approve the Agenda with the 
above removal of agenda items. (6-0, vv) 

 

VI.   PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Oath of Office for Public Safety Officer Bryan Gandy 
 

This item was removed from the agenda. 



 

 

Page 2 of 10                                                                             Council minutes/3-4-2019 

 

  

 

 
B. Presentation-Project Rising Tide Action Strategies 
 

Linda LaNoue, Community Development Fellow gave the following update on 
the Project Rising Tide Action Strategies: 

 
 The top five priorities established for Project Rising Tide are: 

 Public Infrastructure 
 Workforce Development 
 Health/Wellness 
 Post-Industrial Sites 
 Housing 

 Technical assistance provided from third party consulting firm: Beckett & 
Raeder are: 
 Downtown Development Authority (DDA)-2019 Strategic Plan 

Update 
 City of Albion “Branding” for Marketing & Promotion 
 Communications Plan-Connecting & Empowering all Albion 

stakeholders 
 City of Albion Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) 2019 Updates 

from 2017 
 Environment Improvements-Dam Removal Visioning 

 An Action Strategies Planning Meeting will be held on Wednesday, March 
20, 2019 from 6 p.m. – 7 p.m. at the Ludington Center, 101 N. Superior 
Street, Albion, MI  

 
Comments were received from Council Members Williamson, Lawler and 
Spicer and Mayor Atchison. 
 

C. Presentation-American Legion 100th Anniversary 
 

Al Smith, Historian for the American Legion Post #55 gave a brief history of 
the American Legion Post #55 which has fulfilled the Legion’s mission since 
1919 through various Boys and Girls State summer leadership programs; the 
Boy Scouts of America, various academic scholarship programs and the 
Memorial Day Parade. 
 

D. Proclamation Designating March 2019 as American Legion Golden 
Anniversary Month 

 
Mayor Atchison read aloud the Proclamation Designating March 2019 as 
American Legion Golden Anniversary Month and presented to American 
Legion Post #55 members present at the meeting. 

 



 

 

Page 3 of 10                                                                             Council minutes/3-4-2019 

 

  

 

E. Presentation-Expanding Health Care Services in Albion-Oaklawn PACE 
Clinic & Calhoun County Health Department 

 
Richard Lindsay, Executive Director Legal Services Oaklawn Hospital gave 
the following update on the expanding health care services in Albion: 
 
 The Albion Express After-Hours Clinic opened on February 11th, 2019 
 The first week the clinic saw 81 patients; 115 the second week and 88 the 

third week.  They expect this number will increase once Albion College 
closes the student health services on campus. 

 They will be working on starting a community outreach with an 
AmeriCorps VISTA member using some of the methods listed: 
 Door to door 
 Presentations around the City 
 Community events/health fairs 
 Mailings 
 Churches & church bulletins 
 Working with Forks Senior Center 
 Ad on marquee at the Bohm Theatre 
 

 Upcoming Programs: 
 1.5-million-dollar expansion at the B Drive North location for the 

PACE program for the elderly 
 Increased use of health care navigators 
 Purchase of new diagnostic equipment 
 Partnering with Calhoun County Health Department 

 
Brigette Reichenbaugh, Deputy Health Officer, Calhoun County Health 
Department presented the following information: 
 
 The Calhoun County Health Department provides the following 

services: 
 STD testing 
 Immunizations 
 WIC 
 TB testing 
 Pregnancy testing 
 HIV testing 
 Will be providing family planning services 
 Cannot provide abortions 
 Working with Oaklawn Hospital for hearing & vision services for seniors 

 
Comments were received from Council Members Williamson, Lawler and 
Clark. 



 

 

Page 4 of 10                                                                             Council minutes/3-4-2019 

 

  

 

 
 
**Richard Lindsay presented Lenn Reid a check from Oaklawn Hospital for 
the pavilion at Holland Park. 
 

F. Presentation-Friends of Albion Animals 
 

Cindy Stanczak, President of the Friends of Albion Animals gave the following 
presentation: 
 
 On May 5, 2014 Albion City Council officially recognized Friends of 

Albion’s Animals as the city-approved trap/neuter/return program. 
 Friends of Albion’s Animals is an incorporated 501 (c) (3) non-profit 

organization and is completely funded by membership fees, donor 
supporters and grant seeking.  They receive no money from the City of 
Albion. 

 They are a small grass-roots group of dedicated volunteers to humanely 
manage the free-roaming cat population in the greater Albion area 
through colony management and promoting responsible pet ownership in 
Albion. 

 They are a small group of volunteers who need those who will support the 
efforts to speak up and step up, even if it’s just to help get the word out to 
those that may need their help.   

 They are always seeking new members, donors and those willing and 
able to foster abandoned cats and kittens and those looking to adopt. 

 In 2018, the group helped spay/neuter and vaccinate 159 cats, of which 
65 were colony cats. 

 They spend every dollar in donations and grants they receive and receive 
far more requests than they can meet every year. 

 
Comments were received from Council Member Reid 

 
G. Proclamation Designating March 9th, 2019 as “Friends of Albion Animals Day” 
 

Mayor Atchison read aloud the Proclamation Designating March 9th, 2019 as 
Friends of Albion Animals Day in Albion and presented to members of the 
Friends of Albion Animals that were present at the meeting. 

 
H. Presentation-Kids-N-Stuff Children’s Museum 16th Anniversary 
 

Audrey Dean, Executive Director Kids-N-Stuff Museum stated Kids-N-Stuff 
Museum provides a fun, hands-on learning experience for all children and 
families through interactive exhibits.  The museum has received 250,000 
visitors since opening its doors 16 years ago.  Kids-N-Stuff strives to include 
creative outlets for all voices using art, music, dramatic play and movement. 



 

 

Page 5 of 10                                                                             Council minutes/3-4-2019 

 

  

 

 
I.   Proclamation Designating March 23rd, 2019 as Kids-N-Stuff Children’s 

Museum Day 
 

Mayor Atchison read aloud Proclamation Designating March 23rd, 2019 as 
Kids-N-Stuff Children’s Museum Day and presented to Audrey Dean, 
Executive Director. 
 

J. Presentation-Opportunity Atlas 
 

MacLean Robertson, Albion College Junior have the following presentation on 
Opportunity Atlas: 

The Opportunity Atlas is an interactive map of the United States that was 
released in October 2018 by researchers from Harvard University, Brown 
University and the U.S. Census Bureau. The atlas uses past tax and census 
data to show the mobility of 20 million Americans from childhood through their 
mid-30’s.  

The research is being used to discover which neighborhoods give children the 
greatest chance to rise out of poverty. Various statistical data including 
income levels, incarceration rates and teen pregnancy can be displayed as 
filters on the map.  

Children from the neighborhoods located northwest of Superior Street are 
predicted to earn an average salary of $24,000 as adults. This number vastly 
contrasts from neighborhoods located southeast of the city. In these areas, 
children are predicted to earn upwards of $40,000 as adults. 

Even within city lines, children have such different chances at achieving 
financial prosperity.  

Some solutions include implementing more after-school programs, upgrading 
parks and granting easier access to healthcare facilities. Each of these 
solutions makes it easier for families who may need to work late or do not 
have the space for their children to play or grow. 

The opening of the new Oaklawn Express Care and Family Clinic in Albion is a 
major step in the right direction. It now gives the community easy, quick 
access to a physician on sight. Previously, citizens may have had to drive 
elsewhere for a doctor. This was not always practical for a lot of families. 

Comments were received from Council Member Lawler.   

VII.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 



 

 

Page 6 of 10                                                                             Council minutes/3-4-2019 

 

  

 

 
 A. Closeout Peabody Project 
 

Mayor Atchison opened the public hearing on the Closeout of the Peabody 
Project at 8:00 p.m. 

 
Acting City Manager/Chief Public Safety Kipp gave a brief overview of the 
Peabody Project. 

 
No public comments were received. 
 
Mayor Atchison closed the public hearing at 8:02 p.m. 

   
VIII. PUBLIC Comments (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 

comments to agenda items and to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper 
decorum is required.) 

 
Comments were received LaRose Bradley, 312 Arthur St and Garrett Brown, 
1016 S. Superior St. 
 

IX. CLOSED SESSION-The City Attorney requests a Closed Session under the 
Open Meetings Act (Section 15.268 (h), P.A. 267 of 1976, as amended) to 
consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure by state or federal law. 

 
The City Manager requests an Executive Session under the Open Meetings Act 
(Section 15.268 (a), P.A.  267 of 1976, as amended) to consider the dismissal, 
suspension or disciplining of, or to hear complaints or charges brought against, 
or to consider a periodic personnel evaluation of a public officer, employee, staff 
member of individual agent, if the named person requests a closed hearing 

 
Williamson moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED to adjourn to Closed Session. 
(6-0, rcv) 
 
Mayor Atchison adjourned to closed session at 8:11 p.m. 
 
Mayor Atchison re-convened the regular session at 9:15 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Vicky Clark (1); Lenn Reid (2); Marcola Lawler (4); Jeanette Spicer 
(5); Shane Williamson (6) and Mayor Atchison.   
 
ABSENT: Sonya Brown (3) was absent. 
 



 

 

Page 7 of 10                                                                             Council minutes/3-4-2019 

 

  

 

X.  CONSENT CALENDAR (VV) Items on the Consent Calendar are voted on as 
one unit) 

 
A. Approval Regular Session Minutes, February 19, 2019 
B. Approval Special Session Minutes, February 21, 2019 
C. Assembly Permit for New Hope Worship Center Community Event held at 
    Victory Park on June 22, 2019 
D. Assembly Permit for Irwin Avenue Animal Hospital held at Victory Park on 
     May 18, 2019 
E. Assembly Permit for Larry LaBond Disc Golf Course held at Victory Park on 
    April 6, 2019 
F. Assembly Permit for Sister City French Market held at Stoffer Plaza on June 
    15, 2019 
 
Williamson moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to Approve the Consent 
Calendar as presented. (6-0, vv) 
 

XI.  ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL DISCUSSION 
 

A. Discussion/Action City Manager Contract 
 

Comments were received from Council Member Lawler and Williamson and 
City Attorney Harkness. 
 
Mayor Atchison made a motion to Discharge City Manager for Breach of 
Contract.  Reid supported. 
 
Spicer moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, To TABLE Action on City 
Manager Contract. (4-2, rcv) (Williamson and Mayor Atchison dissenting) 

 
B. Discussion/Action Interim City Manager 
 

Comments were received from Council Member Lawler and City Attorney 
Harkness. 
 
Spicer moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, To TABLE Action on Interim City 
Manager position. (6-0, vv) 
 

C. Request Approval Resolution # 2019-07, To Designate City Council Liaison 
to Housing Commission 

 
Comments were received from City Attorney Harkness 
 



 

 

Page 8 of 10                                                                             Council minutes/3-4-2019 

 

  

 

Spicer moved, Lawler supported, CARRIED, to TABLE Approval of 
Resolution # 2019-07, To Designate City Council Liaison to Housing 
Commission as presented. (6-0, vv) 
 

** Council Member Lawler cited Privilege and left at 9:22 p.m. 
 

D. Request Approval Resolution # 2019-08, To Approve Agreement for Moore + 
Bruggink for Professional & Consulting Services for the City Water System 

 
Comments were received from Interim Director Public Services Phillips 
 
Spicer moved, Clark supported, CARRIED, to Approve Resolution # 2019-08, 
To Approve Agreement for Moore + Bruggink for Professional & Consulting 
Services for the City Water System as presented. (5-0, rcv) 

 
E. Discussion/Approval Fair Housing Policy 
 

Comments were received from Acting City Manager/Chief Public Safety Kipp 
 
 Williamson moved, Reid supported, CARRIED, to Fair Housing Policy as 

presented. (5-0, vv) 
 
F. Discussion/Approval Economic Opportunities Policy for Section 3 Covered 

Contracts 
 

Comments were received from Acting City Manager/Chief Public Safety Kipp 
 
Williamson moved, Clark supported, CARRIED, to Economic Opportunities 
Policy for Section 3 Covered Contracts as presented. (5-0, vv) 
 

G. Discussion/City Council Code of Ethics 
 

This item was removed from the agenda. 
 

H. Discussion/Economic Development Initiatives 
 

Mayor Atchison is asking Council Members to bring forth economic 
development initiatives for discussion and prioritization. 
 
The three initiatives he would like are: 

 Prioritizing and emphasizing the Austin & Eaton corridors with help 
from the Council Corridor sub-committee which consists of Council 
Members Clark and Reid and Mayor Atchison 

 Housing & Neighborhood Improvements 
 Increase childcare options in Albion 



 

 

Page 9 of 10                                                                             Council minutes/3-4-2019 

 

  

 

 
I. Discussion/City of Albion Public Relations 
 

Mayor Atchison stated he would like to see Council do better with the public 
relations for the City of Albion.  The Mayor and Council should be the biggest 
champions for the City and would like to see everyone focus on the positive 
things in Albion and move forward. 

 
XII. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 Mayor Atchison asked for a discussion with Council Members input on 
Economic Initiatives  

 City Attorney Harkness asked that all items tabled at tonight’s meeting be 
added to the next agenda and also Discussion/1st Reading of the Criminal 
Marihuana Ordinance 
 

**Council Member Spicer made note a time and date is needed for the rental 
certification sub-committee to meet with Director of Planning, Building & Code 
Enforcement Tracy. 
 

XIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Persons addressing the City Council shall limit their 
comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  Proper decorum is required.) 
 
Comments were received from Garrett Brown, 1016 S. Superior St; Wanda 
Kemp, 703 Valhalla Dr and Bruce Johnson, 509 Lynn St. 
 

XIV. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

Acting City Manager Kipp provided the following City Manager Report:  
 
On Saturday, March 2, 2019, he attended the American Council of Engineering 
Companies of Michigan Engineering & Surveying Excellence Awards.  The City 
of Albion along with Fleis & Vanderbrink received the 2019 Honorable 
Conceptor Award for Surveying based on the Capital Improvement Plan created 
from the survey of the waste water system.  This is the second highest award 
given by the organization.  Acting City Manager/Chief Kipp accepted the award 
on behalf of the City.  Fleis & Vanderbrink were also named the Michigan Large 
Firm of the Year. 
 
**A written City Manager report was also provided to the Mayor and Council. 
 

XV. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER’S COMMENTS 
 

Comments were received from Council Members Reid and Williamson and 
Mayor Atchison. 
 



 

 

Page 10 of 10                                                                             Council minutes/3-4-2019 

 

  

 

XVI. EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCIL MEMBER (S) 
 

Council Member Lawler cited Privilege and left at 9:22 p.m.  
 
Reid moved, Spicer supported, CARRIED, to Excuse Council Member Sonya 
Brown (3). (5-0, vv)  
 

XVII. ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Vicky Clark (1), Lenn Reid (2), Jeanette Spicer (5), Shane 
Williamson (6) and Mayor Atchison.   

 
ABSENT: Council Member Sonya Brown (3) 
Council Member Lawler cited Privilege and left at 9:22 p.m. 

 
XVIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Spicer moved, Williamson supported, CARRIED, to adjourn the regular session. 
(5-0, vv) 
 

Mayor Atchison adjourned the Regular Session at 9:45 p.m. 
 
 
__________________    _________________________ 

Date      Jill Domingo   
        City Clerk 

 
 























1 
 

CITY OF ALBION ORDINANCE 2019-03 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 58-166, POSSESSION AND USE OF 

MARIJUANA 

 
 
FINDINGS AND PURPOSE: As the City Council is aware, the State of Michigan recently 
voted to adopt the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act, also known as 
Initiated Law #1 of 2018. This legislation provides structure similar to the Michigan 
Medical Marihuana Act for businesses seeking to gain licensure for the manufacture and 
distribution of recreational marihuana. The legislation also modified the various penalties 
associated with the possession and use of marihuana by both persons who are the age 
of majority and minors. Our current ordinance is based upon the previous penalties 
contained within the Michigan Health Code. This Ordinance is being proposed for 
adoption so that our criminal ordinance is compliant with state law. As such, this ordinance 
is recommended for approval.  
 

THE CITY OF ALBION ORDAINS THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF 
ALBION, MICHIGAN, IS HEREBY AMENDED BY AMENDING CHAPTER 58, ARTICLE 
VI, SECTION 58-166, WHICH READS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1: 
 
58-166: POSSESSION OR USE OF MARIHUANA 

 

A. Possession of Excess Marihuana 

 

(1) The possession of marihuana, in excess of the amounts authorized by 
the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act, as may be 
amended, (the “MRTMA”), is prohibited.  

 

(2) A person who possesses, delivers, or possesses with intent to deliver 
more than the amount of marihuana allowed by the MRTMA or cultivates 
more than the amount of marihuana plants allowed by the MRTMA, shall 
be responsible for a civil infraction and may be punished by a fine of not 
more than $100.00 and forfeiture of all marihuana.  

 

(3) A person who possesses, delivers, or possesses with intent to deliver 
more than twice the amount of marihuana allowed by the MRTMA or 
cultivates more than twice the amount of marihuana plants allowed by 
the MRTMA, shall be punishable as follows: 

 



2 
 

a. For a first violation, the person shall be responsible for a civil 
infraction and may be punished by a fine of not more than 
$500.00 and forfeiture of the marihuana; 

 

b. For a second violation, the person shall be responsible for a civil 
infraction and may be punished by a fine of not more than 
$1,000.00 and forfeiture of the marihuana; 

 

c. For a third or subsequent violation, the person shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor and may be punished by a fine of not more than 
$500.00 in addition forfeiture of the marihuana. 

 

B. Minors in Possession of Marihuana.  

 

(1) A person under 21 years of age who possesses not more than 2.5 
ounces of marihuana or who cultivates not more than 12 marihuana 
plants, except as otherwise authorized by law, shall be responsible for 
a civil infraction as follows: 

 

a. For a first offense: 

 

i. If the person is less than 18 years of age, a fine of 
not more than $100 or community service, forfeiture 
of the marihuana, and completion of 4 hours of drug 
education or counseling. 

 

ii. If the person is at least 18 years of age, a fine of not 
more than $100 and forfeiture of the marihuana. 

 

b. For a second offense: 

 

i. If the person is less than 18 years of age, a fine of 
not more than $500 or community service, forfeiture 
of the marihuana, and completion of 8 hours of drug 
education or counseling. 

 

ii. If the person is at least 18 years of age, by a fine of 
not more than $500 and forfeiture of the marihuana. 

 

C. Use of Marihuana on City Property Prohibited  

 



3 
 

(1) Consuming, smoking, or otherwise using marihuana on, in, or at any 
City property or park is prohibited. 

 

D. Use of Marihuana in Public Prohibited.  

 

(1) Consuming, smoking, or otherwise using marihuana in a public place or 
where prohibited by the person who owns, occupies, or manages the 
property is prohibited. As used in this section, “public place” shall not 
include an area designated for marihuana consumption authorized by 
the City and which are not accessible to persons under 21 years of age. 

 

(2) A person who violates this subsection is guilty of a misdemeanor 
punishable by imprisonment for not more than 90 days or a fine of not 
more than $100.00, or both. 

 

E. Prosecution under any section of this ordinance shall not be deemed to 
preclude prosecution available under any other local, state, or federal law.  

 

F. The possession, use, delivery, or intent to deliver marihuana or the cultivation 
of marihuana plants specifically authorized or permitted by other City 
Ordinances or state law is not a violation of this Section. 

 

G. Words used within this Section shall be construed to have the same meaning 
as provided in the MRTMA. 

 

State Law Reference: MCL 333.27951, et seq 
 
Section 2: Validity and Severability.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and 
the invalidity of any phrase, clause or part of this Ordinance shall not affect the validity or 
effectiveness of the remainder of the Ordinance. 
 

This Ordinance shall take effect May 1, 2019 after publication. 
 
 



4 
 

First Reading:  
March 18, 2019 
 
Ayes   ______ 
Nays   ______ 
Absent______ 
 
 
________________________ 
Jill Domingo, 
City Clerk 

Second Reading & Adoption:  
April 1, 2019 
 
Ayes   ______ 
Nays   ______ 
Absent______ 
 
 
________________________ 
David Atchison, 
Mayor 

 







Resolution #2019-09 
 

To Approve Restrictive Covenant for 507 N. Albion St. 
 

Purpose and Finding: As the city council is aware, the city has been working with the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency as well as the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality to address a contamination issue on city property. Specifically, 
this relates to the leaking of underground storage tanks. The remediation process has 
been ongoing for several years. As part of the continued efforts to restrict unacceptable 
exposures to certain materials and to ensure compliance with the Natural Resources 
and Environmental Protection Act (Act 451 of 1994), a restrictive covenant is required. 
This restrictive covenant will prohibit various activities from occurring on the property, 
i.e. construction of wells, construction of other structures on the affected areas, etc. The 
restrictive covenant would continue until the level of contamination on the property is no 
longer a threat. Approval of the restrictive covenant is recommended.  
 
Council Member____________________ moved, supported by Council Member 
___________________, to approve the following resolution. 
 
RESOLVED, the Albion City Council hereby approves restrictive covenant for 507 N. 
Albion St. The Albion City Council further authorizes the Acting City Manager to sign the 
restrictive covenant on the City’s behalf. 
 
 I hereby certify that the above resolution was adopted on March 18, 2019, in a 
regular session of the Albion City Council, and this is a true copy of that resolution. 
 
 
Ayes______ 
 
Nays______ 
 
Absent______ 
 
 

_________________________    
Jill Domingo, Albion City Clerk       
 
 





























Resolution #2019-10 
 

To Approve Restrictive Covenant for 1203 E. North St. 
 

Purpose and Finding: As the city council is aware, the city has been working with the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency as well as the Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality to address a contamination issue on city property. Specifically, 
this relates to the leaking of underground storage tanks. The remediation process has 
been ongoing for several years. As part of the continued efforts to restrict unacceptable 
exposures to certain materials and to ensure compliance with the Natural Resources 
and Environmental Protection Act (Act 451 of 1994), a restrictive covenant is required. 
This restrictive covenant will prohibit various activities from occurring on the property, 
i.e. construction of wells, construction of other structures on the affected areas, etc. The 
restrictive covenant would continue until the level of contamination on the property is no 
longer a threat. Approval of the restrictive covenant is recommended.  
 
Council Member____________________ moved, supported by Council Member 
___________________, to approve the following resolution. 
 
RESOLVED, the Albion City Council hereby approves restrictive covenant for 1203 E. 
North St. The Albion City Council further authorizes the Acting City Manager to sign the 
restrictive covenant on the City’s behalf. 
 
 I hereby certify that the above resolution was adopted on March 18, 2019, in a 
regular session of the Albion City Council, and this is a true copy of that resolution. 
 
 
Ayes______ 
 
Nays______ 
 
Absent______ 
 
 

_________________________    
Jill Domingo, Albion City Clerk       
 
 

































1.  What does the rate increase look like in real dollars over the five year period? 

 

Based on the initial cost of $2.36 per 1 unit (100 cubic feet): 

 

Year 7.5 % 5.9 % 

1 2.54 2.50 

2 2.73 2.65 

3 2.93 2.81 

4 3.15 2.98 

5 3.39 3.16 

Difference from Year 1 to Year 5 $1.03 $ 0.80 

 

2. If we do nothing, are we out of compliance with the State of Michigan? 

In order to qualify for USDA grants and loans we are to have our rates set at 1.5% of the 

median household income and show sustainability. 

We also have permits that regulate our Water and Wastewater.  In those permits we are 

required to provide an Asset Management Plan.  As part of that plan you are required to 

show that your utility is sustainable at the set rate structure.   

So yes, this is a compliance issue. 

 

3. Why are you showing us two different rates possibilities? 

The DPS staff understands the hardship the rate increase may present to some in our 

community.  We believe we can cut the projected engineering cost proposals by doing 

some of the projects or parts of the needed projects ourselves.  For example, the Screen 

Project was proposed at $866,000.  We researched and involved other engineering firms 

and found exactly what the WWTP needed for a total projected cost of $240,000.  While 

we cannot guarantee this type of savings for all the projects, the DPS Staff stands ready 

to do all we can to minimize the impact of the much-needed rate increase. 

 

4. Is this the last rate increase we will see for a while? 

Our recommendation is NO.  Most communities raise their rates annually by at least the 

Consumer Price index (CPI) to keep pace with inflation.  Many communities go slightly 

beyond the CPI and set an ongoing annual rate increase of 3%.   



















































INFORMATION 

ONLY 
 



FUND: 101 202 203 208 226 250 265 275 277 450 452 590 591 661
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

CASH SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT FOR CITY OF ALBION 1/2Page: 03/13/2019 09:53 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

FROM 01/01/2019 TO 01/31/2019

Ending
Balance

01/31/2019
Total 

Credits 
Total 

Debits 

Beginning
Balance

01/01/2019Description
Fund
Account

Fund 101 GENERAL FUND
(249,049.03)438,203.75 71,644.12 117,510.60 CASH001.00

788,713.96 180.59 87,628.86 701,265.69 CASH - INCOME TAX ACCOUNT002.00

100,128.00 0.00 270.00 99,858.00 CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT003.00

100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 PETTY CASH004.00

400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 PETTY CASH - CHANGE DRAWER004.02

5,226.53 958.50 5,755.81 429.22 HRA ACCOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES005.00

17,581.49 0.00 9.34 17,572.15 CASH PARK FENCE007.00

310,193.15 0.00 0.00 310,193.15 INVESTMENTS017.00

973,294.10 439,342.84 165,308.13 1,247,328.81 GENERAL FUND

Fund 202 MAJOR STREETS FUND
625,705.16 35,743.87 80,993.36 580,455.67 CASH001.00

101,345.96 0.00 0.00 101,345.96 INVESTMENTS017.00

727,051.12 35,743.87 80,993.36 681,801.63 MAJOR STREETS FUND

Fund 203 LOCAL STREETS FUND
356,445.23 12,513.20 46,594.24 322,364.19 CASH001.00

Fund 208 RECREATION FUND
85,793.68 36,019.05 1,170.97 120,641.76 CASH001.00

Fund 226 SOLID WASTE FUND
299,231.75 6,267.34 227.18 305,271.91 CASH001.00

53,057.53 0.00 0.00 53,057.53 INVESTMENTS017.00

352,289.28 6,267.34 227.18 358,329.44 SOLID WASTE FUND

Fund 250 CDBG FUND
33,427.69 0.00 18.17 33,409.52 CDBG FUND CASH001.01

Fund 265 DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND
2,857.76 2,588.19 326.89 5,119.06 CASH001.00

Fund 275 ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND
198,887.64 3,925.40 1,437.78 201,375.26 FUND CASH ACCOUNT001.01

276.76 0.00 0.00 276.76 PETTY CASH004.00

199,164.40 3,925.40 1,437.78 201,652.02 ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND

Fund 277 ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE
199,609.22 62,346.78 79,404.73 182,551.27 FUND CASH ACCOUNT001.01

488,679.52 0.00 6,158.67 482,520.85 CASH - CAPITAL PROJECTS RESERV002.00

25,572.99 0.00 0.00 25,572.99 CASH-SECURITY DEPOSIT008.00

713,861.73 62,346.78 85,563.40 690,645.11 ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE

Fund 450 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND
257,307.21 1,185.53 191.86 258,300.88 CASH001.00

253,365.06 0.00 0.00 253,365.06 INVESTMENTS017.00

510,672.27 1,185.53 191.86 511,665.94 STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Fund 452 MDOT RECONSTRUCTION FUND
48,471.32 25,390.23 0.00 73,861.55 CASH001.00

Fund 590 SEWER FUND
(18,838.06)221,194.88 138,683.16 63,673.66 CASH001.00

308,841.68 0.00 0.00 308,841.68 INVESTMENTS017.00



FUND: 101 202 203 208 226 250 265 275 277 450 452 590 591 661
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

CASH SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT FOR CITY OF ALBION 2/2Page: 03/13/2019 09:53 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

FROM 01/01/2019 TO 01/31/2019

Ending
Balance

01/31/2019
Total 

Credits 
Total 

Debits 

Beginning
Balance

01/01/2019Description
Fund
Account

290,003.62 221,194.88 138,683.16 372,515.34 SEWER FUND

Fund 591 WATER FUND
508,471.19 60,265.15 92,418.26 476,318.08 CASH001.00

249,591.50 0.00 331.50 249,260.00 CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT003.00

61,990.00 0.00 0.00 61,990.00 RESTRICTED CASH - BOND RESERVE006.00

200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 CASH-SECURITY DEPOSIT008.00

359,672.88 0.00 0.00 359,672.88 INVESTMENTS017.00

1,179,925.57 60,265.15 92,749.76 1,147,440.96 WATER FUND

Fund 661 EQUIPMENT POOL FUND
224,736.68 17,084.97 157.89 241,663.76 CASH001.00

5,697,994.45 923,867.43 613,422.79 6,008,439.09 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 1/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND

2.24 3,948,592.00 88,492.07 3,684,734.39 3,670,410.00   000 - GENERAL

0.00 0.00 0.00 75.50 76.00   209 - ASSESSING

100.00 0.00 90.00 62.67 62.00   215 - CLERK

5.00 600.00 30.00 817.00 600.00   260 - FINANCE DEPT AND/OR ABA GENERAL

6.03 58,000.00 3,500.00 89,746.80 87,447.00   276 - CEMETERY

8.87 36,500.00 3,239.07 36,163.93 85,173.00   345 - PUBLIC SAFETY

3.36 101,500.00 3,412.50 92,711.14 93,150.00   422 - CODE ENFORCEMENT

100.00 0.00 96,127.00 0.00 0.00   448 - STREET LIGHTING

0.00 0.00 0.00 76,318.91 76,319.00   758 - ALBION RIVER/BIKE TRAIL

12.00 2,500.00 300.00 2,390.00 2,400.00   775 - PARKS

0.00 10,000.00 0.00 4,704.16 4,704.00   778 - HOLLAND PARK TRANSFORMATION PROJECT

0.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00   930 - TRANSFER IN

4.68 4,167,692.00 195,190.64 3,997,724.50 4,030,341.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 50,606.00 0.00 40,360.75 54,055.00   101 - CITY COUNCIL

0.59 208,295.00 1,238.56 81,391.09 98,480.00   172 - CITY MANAGER

8.90 44,810.00 3,986.68 45,879.40 48,300.00   209 - ASSESSING

7.47 99,150.00 7,410.00 113,825.22 110,400.00   210 - ATTORNEY

2.81 127,725.00 3,586.11 129,168.66 129,375.00   215 - CLERK

6.39 14,900.00 951.60 25,588.17 29,579.00   226 - HUMAN RESOURCES

2.01 484,735.00 9,730.14 320,111.78 371,682.00   260 - FINANCE DEPT AND/OR ABA GENERAL

0.59 72,175.00 423.10 136,844.10 151,370.00   265 - MUNICIPAL BLDG AND/OR 201 N CLINTON ST

2.09 165,210.00 3,455.05 153,452.12 172,126.00   276 - CEMETERY

4.88 2,105,577.00 102,843.10 2,031,948.73 2,110,452.26   345 - PUBLIC SAFETY

4.06 253,285.00 10,287.64 176,608.68 194,817.00   422 - CODE ENFORCEMENT

0.02 56,125.00 9.11 47,988.41 64,182.00   442 - CITY MAINTENANCE

8.20 17,675.00 1,450.00 15,399.10 20,615.00   444 - TREE TRIMMING

0.06 15,270.00 9.10 22,140.42 28,737.00   447 - ENGINEERING

64.08 150,000.00 96,127.00 161,667.43 169,500.00   448 - STREET LIGHTING

0.00 21,000.00 0.00 9,803.12 8,600.00   526 - EPA LANDFILL

0.00 0.00 0.00 76,318.91 76,319.00   758 - ALBION RIVER/BIKE TRAIL

2.22 207,700.00 4,609.14 208,839.59 226,335.00   775 - PARKS

0.00 10,000.00 0.00 47.68 4,704.00   778 - HOLLAND PARK TRANSFORMATION PROJECT

10.02 149,674.00 14,991.41 128,297.34 136,650.00   895 - GENERAL APPROPRIATION

6.14 4,253,912.00 261,107.74 3,925,680.70 4,206,278.26   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

76.45 (86,220.00)(65,917.10)72,043.80 (175,937.26)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

6.14 4,253,912.00 261,107.74 3,925,680.70 4,206,278.26 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

4.68 4,167,692.00 195,190.64 3,997,724.50 4,030,341.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 2/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS FUND

3.70 775,882.00 28,731.09 753,136.44 750,327.00   000 - GENERAL

0.00 55,000.00 0.00 133,234.10 133,234.00   487 - M-99 TRUNKLINE

3.46 830,882.00 28,731.09 886,370.54 883,561.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 95,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00   454 - ACT 51 NON-MOTORIZED

2.24 420,188.00 9,393.02 361,064.99 417,766.00   461 - MAINTENANCE

0.00 3,083.00 0.00 683.93 3,183.00   465 - TRAFFIC SERVICES

1.05 50,515.00 532.39 31,143.18 53,365.00   467 - WINTER MAINTENANCE

0.00 33,360.00 0.00 25,589.29 40,577.00   486 - I-94 TRUNKLINE

0.00 30,540.00 0.00 22,723.15 33,587.00   487 - M-99 TRUNKLINE

0.00 15,305.00 0.00 12,728.49 19,257.00   488 - M-199 TRUNKLINE

0.00 128,000.00 0.00 193,000.00 193,000.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

1.28 775,991.00 9,925.41 646,933.03 760,735.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

34.26 54,891.00 18,805.68 239,437.51 122,826.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

1.28 775,991.00 9,925.41 646,933.03 760,735.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

3.46 830,882.00 28,731.09 886,370.54 883,561.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREETS FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 3/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREETS FUND

10.33 276,262.00 28,532.00 334,616.57 326,819.00   000 - GENERAL

0.00 125,000.00 0.00 190,000.00 190,000.00   930 - TRANSFER IN

7.11 401,262.00 28,532.00 524,616.57 516,819.00   TOTAL REVENUES

1.25 342,082.00 4,262.58 339,001.88 376,332.00   461 - MAINTENANCE

0.00 6,965.00 0.00 1,413.30 7,127.00   465 - TRAFFIC SERVICES

5.09 41,600.00 2,116.25 33,462.90 57,950.00   467 - WINTER MAINTENANCE

0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

1.62 393,647.00 6,378.83 376,878.08 444,409.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

290.91 7,615.00 22,153.17 147,738.49 72,410.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

1.62 393,647.00 6,378.83 376,878.08 444,409.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

7.11 401,262.00 28,532.00 524,616.57 516,819.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREETS FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 4/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - RECREATION FUND

0.66 178,065.00 1,170.97 152,545.66 142,636.00   780 - RECREATION

0.66 178,065.00 1,170.97 152,545.66 142,636.00   TOTAL REVENUES

17.96 177,599.00 31,888.09 138,936.60 153,687.00   780 - RECREATION

17.96 177,599.00 31,888.09 138,936.60 153,687.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

6,591.66 466.00 (30,717.12)13,609.06 (11,051.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

17.96 177,599.00 31,888.09 138,936.60 153,687.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.66 178,065.00 1,170.97 152,545.66 142,636.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 208 - RECREATION FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 5/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 226 - SOLID WASTE FUND

0.09 252,725.00 223.17 265,761.82 251,488.00   000 - GENERAL

0.09 252,725.00 223.17 265,761.82 251,488.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 7,523.00 0.00 0.00 16,205.00   523 - LEAF PICKUP

2.41 10,160.00 244.38 5,220.20 16,020.00   524 - TREE DUMP

2.05 144,368.00 2,961.66 122,675.53 145,355.00   528 - SOLID WASTE

0.00 25,500.00 0.00 25,500.00 25,500.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

1.71 187,551.00 3,206.04 153,395.73 203,080.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

4.58 65,174.00 (2,982.87)112,366.09 48,408.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

1.71 187,551.00 3,206.04 153,395.73 203,080.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.09 252,725.00 223.17 265,761.82 251,488.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 226 - SOLID WASTE FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 6/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 265 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND

0.00 44,000.00 2.14 6,821.15 12,830.00   000 - GENERAL

0.00 30,000.00 0.00 28,884.17 25,000.00   400 - FED DRUG LAW ENFOR - REIMBUR

0.00 74,000.00 2.14 35,705.32 37,830.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 72,500.00 0.00 31,838.09 29,264.00   333 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT

(21.65)1,500.00 (324.75)11,377.88 10,982.00   400 - FED DRUG LAW ENFOR - REIMBUR

(0.44)74,000.00 (324.75)43,215.97 40,246.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 0.00 326.89 (7,510.65)(2,416.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.44 74,000.00 (324.75)43,215.97 40,246.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 74,000.00 2.14 35,705.32 37,830.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 265 - DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 7/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 275 - ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND

2.45 4,569.00 111.78 4,857.09 4,743.00   000 - GENERAL

0.00 0.00 0.00 137,439.34 137,439.00   264 - EDC BUILDING

8.33 1,512.00 126.00 1,386.00 1,512.00   265 - MUNICIPAL BLDG AND/OR 201 N CLINTON ST

3.75 32,000.00 1,200.00 36,000.00 34,450.00   271 - FIRE/AMBULANCE BUILDING

0.00 1.00 0.00 1.00 1.00   273

3.78 38,082.00 1,437.78 179,683.43 178,145.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 7,107.00 0.00 5,929.56 7,090.00   260 - FINANCE DEPT AND/OR ABA GENERAL

0.00 0.00 0.00 16,965.64 17,190.00   264 - EDC BUILDING

0.00 2,005.00 0.00 1,931.37 1,945.00   265 - MUNICIPAL BLDG AND/OR 201 N CLINTON ST

0.00 0.00 0.00 26,700.00 30,000.00   270 - 101 N GALE ST

0.07 26,850.00 17.70 22,617.19 29,250.00   271 - FIRE/AMBULANCE BUILDING

0.00 1,951.00 0.00 10,600.54 12,400.00   273 - 112 E ERIE ST

0.05 37,913.00 17.70 84,744.30 97,875.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

840.28 169.00 1,420.08 94,939.13 80,270.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.05 37,913.00 17.70 84,744.30 97,875.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

3.78 38,082.00 1,437.78 179,683.43 178,145.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 275 - ALBION BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 8/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 277 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE

8.72 455,400.00 39,705.02 471,362.45 450,400.00   000 - GENERAL

8.72 455,400.00 39,705.02 471,362.45 450,400.00   TOTAL REVENUES

2.91 366,153.00 10,647.03 311,379.75 368,450.00   701 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE

0.00 61,750.00 0.00 64,750.00 64,750.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE - BONDS

2.49 427,903.00 10,647.03 376,129.75 433,200.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

105.68 27,497.00 29,057.99 95,232.70 17,200.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

2.49 427,903.00 10,647.03 376,129.75 433,200.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

8.72 455,400.00 39,705.02 471,362.45 450,400.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 277 - ABA SEC 8 MAPLE GROVE:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 9/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 367 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM FUND

(23.31)(1,000.00)233.08 24,234.15 23,906.00   000 - GENERAL

(23.31)(1,000.00)233.08 24,234.15 23,906.00   TOTAL REVENUES

0.00 300,000.00 0.00 0.00 23,856.00   443 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM

0.00 300,000.00 0.00 0.00 23,856.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.08 (301,000.00)233.08 24,234.15 50.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 300,000.00 0.00 0.00 23,856.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

23.31 (1,000.00)233.08 24,234.15 23,906.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 367 - SIDEWALK PROGRAM FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 10/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND

7.39 1,221,300.00 90,194.41 1,240,317.37 1,215,326.00   000 - GENERAL

0.00 0.00 0.00 2,250.00 0.00   536 - WATER UTILITY OPERATIONS

0.00 0.00 0.00 97,102.67 99,352.00   546 - MEDC GRANT - DIGESTER, PUMP, ETC.

7.39 1,221,300.00 90,194.41 1,339,670.04 1,314,678.00   TOTAL REVENUES

2.43 1,367,208.00 33,225.86 1,297,490.15 1,348,808.00   536 - SEWER UTILITY OPERATIONS

0.00 7,800.00 0.00 8,143.14 7,800.00   542 - WWTP ENERGY IMPROVEMENTS

0.00 0.00 0.00 389,371.44 400,000.00   546 - MEDC GRANT - DIGESTER, PUMP, ETC.

0.00 148,400.00 0.00 148,400.00 148,400.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

2.18 1,523,408.00 33,225.86 1,843,404.73 1,905,008.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

18.86 (302,108.00)56,968.55 (503,734.69)(590,330.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

2.18 1,523,408.00 33,225.86 1,843,404.73 1,905,008.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

7.39 1,221,300.00 90,194.41 1,339,670.04 1,314,678.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 590 - SEWER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 11/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND

8.04 952,850.00 76,589.55 952,212.56 930,714.00   000 - GENERAL

0.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00   548 - WATERTOWER PAINTING PROJECT

8.04 952,850.00 76,589.55 1,452,212.56 1,430,714.00   TOTAL REVENUES

1.79 1,064,423.00 19,067.11 1,028,584.74 1,059,059.00   536 - WATER UTILITY OPERATIONS

0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00   540 - WELLHEAD PROTECTION

0.00 0.00 0.00 565,839.58 568,200.00   548 - WATERTOWER PAINTING PROJECT

0.00 231,800.00 0.00 11,450.00 11,450.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

1.47 1,296,723.00 19,067.11 1,605,874.32 1,639,209.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

16.73 (343,873.00)57,522.44 (153,661.76)(208,495.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

1.47 1,296,723.00 19,067.11 1,605,874.32 1,639,209.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

8.04 952,850.00 76,589.55 1,452,212.56 1,430,714.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF ALBION 12/12Page: 03/13/2019 09:52 AM
User: TMEAD
DB: Albion

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2019
% Fiscal Year Completed: 8.49

% BDGT
USED

2019
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2019

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

END BALANCE
12/31/2018

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2018

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 661 - EQUIPMENT POOL FUND

0.06 285,175.00 157.89 320,253.88 271,252.00   000 - GENERAL

0.06 285,175.00 157.89 320,253.88 271,252.00   TOTAL REVENUES

1.95 299,875.00 5,834.41 294,835.40 315,761.00   770 - EQUIPMENT POOL

0.00 0.00 0.00 93.30 93.00   905 - DEBT SERVICE - BONDS

0.00 17,850.00 0.00 17,850.00 17,850.00   965 - TRANSFER OUT

1.84 317,725.00 5,834.41 312,778.70 333,704.00   TOTAL EXPENDITURES

17.44 (32,550.00)(5,676.52)7,475.18 (62,452.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

1.84 317,725.00 5,834.41 312,778.70 333,704.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.06 285,175.00 157.89 320,253.88 271,252.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 661 - EQUIPMENT POOL FUND:

8.92 (909,939.00)81,194.27 142,169.01 (709,517.26)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

3.90 9,766,372.00 380,973.47 9,507,971.91 10,241,287.26 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS

5.22 8,856,433.00 462,167.74 9,650,140.92 9,531,770.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS


	03182019 Agenda.pdf (p.1-2)
	2                                             Proclamation Albion College.pdf (p.3)
	3                                                   AEDC Presentation for Econ Forecast 03072019a.pdf (p.4-21)
	4                                               Chamber.pdf (p.22-33)
	5                                2019 MAYORS REPORT - economic outlook.pdf (p.34-42)
	6                                3-1-2019 Special Council Minutes.pdf (p.43-45)
	7                                  3-4-2019 Council Minutes.pdf (p.46-55)
	8                                              Assembly Permit.pdf (p.56-58)
	9                                             GOV HR Contract.pdf (p.59-65)
	12                                 Ordinance 2019-03.pdf (p.66-69)
	13               designate street administrator.pdf (p.70-71)
	14                                  Resolution 2019-09.pdf (p.72)
	15                                   back up for 507 n albion st.pdf (p.73-85)
	16                                      Resolution 2019-10.pdf (p.86)
	17                                    Back up for 1203 e north st.pdf (p.87-101)
	19                                           sewer rate comparison.pdf (p.102)
	20                                          Sewer Rates.pdf (p.103-120)
	21                                           Rental Property Certification Sub-Committee Charter - 12 March 2019.pdf (p.121-124)
	22                                   Michigan Housing Law Section 126_526  Inspections.pdf (p.125-126)
	23                                             INFORMATION ONLY.pdf (p.127)
	24                                  Cash Summary - 1-31-2019.pdf (p.128-129)
	25                                            Rev  Exp - 1-31-2019.pdf (p.130-141)

